
 

 

   
 

 BID ADDENDUM 
 

August 26, 2025 
 

FAILURE TO RETURN THIS ADDENDUM MAY SUBJECT YOUR BID TO REJECTION  
 

                      
Solicitation Number Doc1677946894 
Solicitation Description Staff Augmentation 
Addendum Number 1 

                
 
 

Solicitation Opening has been extended to September 11, 2025. 
Submit proposals BEFORE 2:00 pm ET (by 1:59:59). 

 
 
 
CHANGE TO SOLICITATION: 
 

1. Section 4.3 PAYMENT STRUCTURE has been amended to read: 
Payment will be a fixed fee not-to-exceed for services based on the scope of work for each task order. 

 
 

2. Attachment C: North Carolina General Contract Terms and Conditions 2(b) is stricken as written in the 
original solicitation and is hereby replaced with the following language: 
 
If, through any cause, Vendor shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner the obligations under the 
Contract, including, without limitation, in these North Carolina General Terms and Conditions, the State 
shall have the right to terminate the Contract by giving ten days written notice to the Vendor and specifying 
the effective date thereof. In that event, any or all finished or unfinished deliverables that are prepared by 
the Vendor under the Contract shall, at the option of the State, become the property of the State (and 
under any applicable Vendor license to the extent necessary for the State to use such property), and the 
Vendor shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any acceptable deliverable 
completed (or partially completed at the State’s option) as to which such option is exercised. 
Notwithstanding, Vendor shall not be relieved of liability to the State for damages sustained by the State 
by virtue of any breach of the Contract, and the State may withhold any payment due the Vendor for the 
purpose of setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due the State from such breach can be 
determined. The State, if insecure as to receiving proper performance or provision of goods deliverables, 
or if documented Vendor Services performance issues exist, under this Contract, may require at any time a 
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performance bond or other alternative performance guarantees from a Vendor without expense to the 
State as provided by applicable law. G.S. 143-52(a); 01 NCAC 05B.1521; G.S. 25-2-609. 
 
If this Contract contemplates deliveries or performance over a period of time, the State may terminate this 
Contract for convenience at any time by providing 30 days’ notice in writing from the State to the Vendor. 
In that event, any or all finished or unfinished deliverables prepared by the Vendor under this Contract shall, 
at the option of the State, become its property, and under any applicable Vendor license and permits to the 
extent necessary for the State to use such property. If the Contract is terminated by the State for 
convenience, the State shall pay for those items or Services for which such option is exercised, less any 
payment or compensation previously made. 

 
 
 
RESPONSE TO QUESTIONS: 
 
State’s Responses to Questions Received by the due date and time of August 18, 2025, by 5:00 pm ET.  The Question 
appears exactly as submitted by the Vendor.   
 

  CITATION VENDOR QUESTION DCR RESPONSE 
1 5.2.7 – Task 7: Needs 

Assessments, Market 
Analysis, and Geospatial 
Support; 5.2.8 – Task 8: 
Program Performance 
Monitoring and Evaluation 

May vendors include nonbinding 
annexes (e.g., sample 
dashboards or geospatial maps) 
to illustrate technical approach 
for Tasks 7 and 8, or should 
responses remain narrative only? 

Samples are acceptable. 

2 5.1 General (SOR) For the System of Record (SOR) 
referenced, does DCR anticipate 
a required integration with HUD 
DRGR, or will DRGR be operated 
separately alongside the SOR? 

No, DRGR will be separate from 
the SOR. 

3 4.5 HUB Participation; 
Attachment E – HUB 
Information 

To confirm: will a woman-owned 
prime (not HUB-certified) 
partnering with certified HUB 
subcontractors be recognized as 
meeting the State’s 10% HUB 
utilization goal? 

The minority participation goal is 
for state construction projects 
for state-owned buildings 
(N.C.G.S. 143-128.2).  Outside of 
state construction, the state has 
a policy of encouraging and 
promoting the use of small, 
minority, and women-owned 
businesses (see N.C.G.S. 143-48) 
but it is not a criterion for award.   

4 5.1 General (staffing & 
hours) 

Will remote or hybrid staffing be 
acceptable if we maintain 
weekday 8:00 a.m.–5:00 p.m. ET 
coverage and comply with any 
required in-person roles? 

As described in the RFP, DCR may 
require in-person roles 
depending upon program needs.  
Virtual or hybrid will not meet 
the in-person requirement for 
those roles determined to be in-
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person. In-person needs will be 
identified in each task order.  

5 4.6 Background Checks Are specific background checks 
required (e.g., SBI, CJIS, 
fingerprinting), or will standard 
vendor HR screenings suffice 
unless otherwise requested? 

Standard HR screenings will 
suffice unless otherwise 
requested based on specific 
needs. Additional background 
checks may be required for in-
person roles.   

6 4.2 Pricing; Attachment A – 
Task Order Categories / 
Pricing 

For pricing, may vendors propose 
category specific position titles 
and rates (i.e., rates can differ by 
Task Order category), provided 
all rates are not to exceed and 
inclusive of expenses? 

Yes. 

7 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Narrative Response: Vendor 
Qualifications and Approach 
Page No: 10 

Is it mandatory, the Vendor 
should meet the Relevant 
experience with HUD-funded 
programs (e.g., CDBG-DR, CDBG-
MIT, HOME, ESG) or other 
disaster recovery work as an 
eligibility to submit the bid 

Vendors will not be disqualified 
for lack of experience, so a bid 
could be evaluated even without 
relevant experience. Experience 
is an important criterion, and 
lack of experience would be 
considered a weakness in the 
evaluation and might result in 
the vendor not being placed on 
the contract at all or for a 
particular task.  

8 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Narrative Response: Vendor 
Qualifications and Approach 
Page No: 10 

Can CDBG-DR confirm if vendors 
without experience in HUD-
funded programs or other 
disaster recovery work, may still 
be considered to bid if they 
demonstrate strong qualifications 
in other areas?" 

Yes, vendors without experience 
in HUD-funded programs may 
still be considered for a bid.   

9 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Is there an existing incumbent 
vendor or vendor pool currently 
providing staff augmentation 
services for the CDBG-DR 
program? 

Not for the NC Department of 
Commerce’s CDBG-DR programs. 

10 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Can DCR confirm whether there 
is a minimum number of 
personnel the vendors required 
to propose for each task order 
category 

There are no minimums. 

11 2.6 RFP Submittal 
Page No: 9 

Will the Department require both 
electronic submission through 
eProcurement and a hard copy, 
or is electronic submission alone 
sufficient? 

Electronic submission alone is 
sufficient.   
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12 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Could DCR please provide more 
insights regarding vendors may 
propose staffing levels (labor 
categories) based on their 
approach and capacity to meet 
each task order category? 

Based on their experiences with 
HUD and/or disaster recovery 
work, vendors should propose 
how they would staff each task.    

13 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Examples 
Page No: 10 

For Attachment H, are all 
example projects required to be 
related specifically to HUD-
funded programs and disaster 
recovery work, or may we include 
other relevant staffing 
engagements that demonstrate 
comparable scope and 
complexity? 

Other relevant staffing 
engagements are acceptable, 
though more comparable 
experience may receive a 
stronger evaluation.   

14 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Resumes 
Page No: 10 

Can DCR confirm whether it is 
mandatory to submit minimum 
of two resumes for all proposed 
staff for each proposed position 
or labor category? 

It is not mandatory but 
encouraged for key personnel.   

15 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Can you confirm whether 
vendors must be registered with 
the State of North Carolina at the 
time of proposal submission? 

Vendors do not have to have a 
Certificate of Authority to 
Transact Business in NC at the 
time of submission, but they will 
be required to obtain one upon 
contract.   

16 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Is business registration is 
required upon award of a 
contract? 

Yes, a Certificate of Authority to 
Transact Business in North 
Carolina from the NC Secretary 
of State’s Office is required upon 
award of a contract.   

17 Attachment B 
North Carolina Instructions 
to Vendors 

Could you please confirm the bid 
opening date and advise when 
and where the bid tabulation 
results will be made available for 
public viewing? 

Per this Addendum the 
solicitation opening date has 
been extended to September 11, 
2025. Submit proposals by 
September 11, 2025, BEFORE 
2:00 pm ET (by 1:59:59). 

 
Per ATTACHMENT B: NORTH 
CAROLINA INSTRUCTIONS TO 
VENDORS, paragraph 26 
TABULATIONS, “Bid tabulations 
can be electronically retrieved at 
the Electronic Vendor Portal 
(eVP), https://evp.nc.gov”. 

18 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Resumes 

Can we submit sample resumes 
instead of actual staff resumes? 

This is not prohibited but may 
receive a weaker evaluation, as 
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Page No: 10 DCR will not be able to 
determine actual experience.  
Sample resumes should be 
identified as such.   

19 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Examples 
Page No: 10 

For the experience requirements 
outlined in the RFP, can project 
examples from subcontractors be 
included in the proposal, or must 
all examples reflect the direct 
past performance of the prime 
contractor? 

Project examples from 
subcontractors may be included 
and should be identified as such.   

20 2.6 Reference: Section RFP 
Submittal,  
Page no: 9 

Is there a maximum file size limit 
for electronic proposal 
submissions through 
eProcurement Sourcing? 

The file size limit is 100MB. If 
Vendor response is greater than 
100MB Vendors are allowed to 
“ZIP” the file and upload a zip file. 
The State must be able to open 
any file submitted.  
 
Per the RFP, “Questions or issues 
related to using eProcurement 
Sourcing must be directed to the 
eProcurement Help Desk at 888-
211-7440, Option 2. Help Desk 
representatives are available 
Monday through Friday from 7:30 
AM ET to 5:00 PM ET”. 

21 Offer Checklist 
Page no: 60 

Should the attachments be 
included within the Technical 
Proposal? 

The entire offer, one (1) pdf file, 
should be uploaded in 
eProcurement Sourcing in Section 
5.1 VENDOR OFFER.   

22 Offer Checklist 
Page no: 60 

Should the attachments be 
submitted as separate files? 

The attachments should not be 
submitted as separate files.  

23 4.5 Hub Participation 
Page no: 16 

Is it mandatory for the vendor to 
meet the 10% HUB participation 
goal 

No. See response to Question #3. 

24 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Will the vendor’s resources be 
required to work on-site? 

Some personnel may be required 
to work on-site, depending on 
the task order.   

25 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Will the vendor’s resources be 
required to work on-site, 
remotely, or a combination of 
both? 

Depending on the task order, 
some personnel may be required 
to work on-site; others will be 
able to work remotely.   

26 5.2.16 Technical Systems 
Specification & Project 
Management  
Page No: 23 

Will the vendor be required to 
provide actual IT 
development/configuration, or 
only project management and 
system specification support? 

Only project management 
system specification support.  
DCR has issued a separate 
procurement for a grants 
management system.   
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27 4.3 Payment Structure 
Page No: 15 

Payment is stated as a “fixed fee 
per task order.” Can you clarify 
how this aligns with Attachment 
A’s hourly rate structure? Should 
vendors present max hourly rates 
only, with task order pricing later 
converted into fixed fees? 

See clarification at the top of this 
addendum. Payment will be a 
NOT-TO-EXCEED amount for 
services based on the scope of 
work for each task order.   

28 1.0 Purpose and 
Background (p. 6); 3.1 
Method of Award (p. 11–
12) 

Can the State clarify how many 
vendors it intends to pre-qualify 
under this pool, and whether 
there is a target number of 
awards and contract value? 

The number of prequalified 
vendors may vary by task and will 
depend on the applicant pool.  
The State does not have a target 
number at this time.   

29 2.4 RFP Schedule (p. 8) We respectfully request a one- to 
two-week extension to the 
current proposal submission 
deadline of September 4, 2025 
for Staff Augmentation, 
Community Development Block 
Grant-Disaster Recovery, Expert 
Administrative Support, RFP # 
Doc1677946894. Due to the 
complexity and level of detail 
required, additional time would 
enable our team to prepare a 
thorough and high-quality 
response that fully aligns with the 
objectives and expectations 
outlined in the solicitation. 

Per this Addendum the 
solicitation opening date has been 
extended to September 11, 2025. 
Submit proposals by September 
11, 2025, BEFORE 2:00 pm ET (by 
1:59:59). 
 

30 5.3 Task Order 
Methodology (p. 24) 

Will all pre-qualified vendors be 
invited to respond to each task 
order, or will DCR use a rotation, 
shortlisting, or limited 
competition approach? 

The State does not have any 
information to add to Section 5.3 
Task Order Methodology at this 
time.   

31 5.3 Task Order 
Methodology (p. 24) 

Will task order awards be based 
solely on the hourly rates in 
Attachment A, or can vendors 
propose reduced rates or 
discounts when competing for 
individual task orders? 

Task order awards will not be 
based solely on hourly rates.  
Please see the description in 
Section 5.3 regarding best value.  
Reduced rates may be 
acceptable, but the State 
encourages vendors to submit 
their best rate in response to this 
RFP.   

32 4.2 Pricing (p. 15); 
Attachment A (p. 27–28) 

The RFP states that hourly rates 
must be “inclusive of salary, 
overhead, administrative and 
other similar fees, travel and 
other expenses.” Can the State 

Travel should be included in the 
hourly rates and will not be 
reimbursed separately.   
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confirm that no separate travel 
reimbursement will be permitted 
under task orders? 

33 4.2 Pricing (p. 15); 
Attachment A (p. 27–28) 

Are vendors permitted to 
propose different position titles 
under different task order 
categories (e.g., Senior Policy 
Analyst for Task 1 vs. Analyst for 
Task 7), or must positions be 
standardized across all 
categories? 

Vendors may propose different 
positions titles under different 
task order categories.   

34 5.2.17 Environmental 
Review (p. 24) 

For Task 17, should unit pricing 
for environmental reviews 
include the cost of specialized 
studies (e.g., wetlands 
delineations, Phase I ESA), or will 
those be procured separately by 
DCR or reimbursed as pass-
through costs? 

Unit pricing will be considered 
inclusive of any specialized study 
necessary to complete the 
review. See response to Question 
#27. 

35 4.2 Pricing (p. 15) Does the State allow annual rate 
escalation within the three-year 
base term, or are hourly rates 
fixed for all three years? 

The table in Attachment A asks 
for hourly rates each year for 
three years – the rates do not 
have to be the same each year 
but must be identified in the 
response to this RFP.   

36 4.5 HUB Participation (p. 
15); Attachment E (p. 55) 

Will HUB participation be 
evaluated during the pre-
qualification stage, or only at the 
task order level? 

See response to Question #3.  

37 4.9 Insurance 
Requirements (p. 16–17) 

Must vendors demonstrate proof 
of all required insurance at the 
time of proposal submission, or is 
it sufficient to show the ability to 
obtain coverage prior to task 
order award? 

Proof of insurance coverage is 
not required at the time of 
submission, though vendors 
should indicate their willingness 
and ability to obtain the required 
amount of coverage.  Proof of 
insurance will be required prior 
to any task order award.   

38 5.2.14 Communication & 
Outreach (p. 23) 

For communication and outreach 
deliverables, will DCR provide 
centralized branding and style 
guidelines, or should vendors 
propose their own 
branding/messaging approach? 

Yes, DCR will provide branding 
and style guidelines.  Vendors 
may draft messaging, subject to 
DCR final approval.   

39 1.0 Scope of Services – Staff 
Augmentation 
Page 6 

Can the Department clarify 
whether augmented staff will be 
embedded onsite at DOC offices 
or deployed remotely, and if 

See response to Question #4, 
#25. 
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there is a required percentage of 
onsite vs. remote presence? 

40 1.0 Scope of Services – Staff 
Augmentation 
Page 7 

Are staff expected to support 
multiple grant programs 
simultaneously (e.g., CDBG-DR 
and other federal disaster 
recovery grants), or will 
assignments be dedicated to one 
program at a time? 

 As an Agency-Specific Term 
Contract, this contract could be 
used for any need within the 
Department of Commerce.  
Currently, the intent is to use the 
contract for CDBG-DR funded 
Helene Recovery programs. 
Specific Task Orders will identify 
the program(s) and assignments 
needed at that time. 

41 1.0 Scope of Services – 
Disaster Recovery Expertise 
Page 8 

Does “expert support” refer to 
programmatic advisory roles 
(e.g., policy, compliance, 
technical assistance) or 
operational roles (e.g., processing 
applications, reviewing files)? 

Could apply to either depending 
upon the respective Task order.    

42 3.2 Minimum Qualifications 
Page 13 

Will the Department accept 
equivalent professional 
experience in place of formal 
certifications, particularly in 
community revitalization, federal 
grant administration, or disaster 
recovery? 

It depends upon the task order. 

43 3.3 Key Personnel 
Page 14 

Are bidders required to name 
specific personnel in the 
proposal, or can they submit 
general position descriptions 
with resumes provided upon 
request or at award? 

See response to Question #14 
and #18. 

44 4.0 Deliverables and 
Reporting 
Page 18 

What are the specific reporting 
expectations for augmented staff 
(e.g., weekly timesheets, task 
completion reports, outcome-
based metrics)? 

Reporting expectations will be 
task-dependent and will reflect 
completion activities and 
timesheets as needed. 

45 4.0 Performance Standards 
Page 19 

How will the Department 
measure successful 
augmentation — is it based on 
hours delivered, tasks completed, 
or program outcomes? 

DCR will measure successful staff 
augmentation through tasks 
completed and program 
outcomes, but will require 
documentation for billing based 
on the task order. 

46 5.1 Contract Term 
Page 22 

Is there an anticipated maximum 
number of augmented staff to be 
engaged at one time, or will this 
be on a task-order/on-demand 
basis? 

No, it will be task order 
dependent. 
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47 5.2 Compensation 
Page 23 

Will the Department reimburse 
based on fixed hourly rates per 
role, or can firms propose 
blended rates? 

See clarification at the top of this 
addendum. Payment will be a 
NOT-TO-EXCEED amount for 
services based on the scope of 
work for each task order.   
 

48 6.0 Proposal Submission 
Requirements 
Page 25 

Does the Department require 
hard-copy submission in addition 
to electronic, or is electronic 
submission via email sufficient? 

See responses to Question #11 
and #72. 
 
 

49 6.0 Proposal Format 
Page 27 

Is there a required template for 
resumes and qualifications, or 
will standard organizational 
formats be acceptable? 

There is no required template; 
standard formats are acceptable.  

50 4.0 Deliverables and 
Reporting 
Page 20 

Would the Department be open 
to integrating lightweight third-
party engagement tools (such as 
AskHumans) to gather 
stakeholder feedback and track 
satisfaction with augmented staff 
over time? 

Any third-party engagement 
tools will have to be approved by 
the NC Department of 
Information Technology. 

51 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Page 10 

Can vendors submit more than 
three project examples in 
Attachment H to demonstrate 
broader HUD-related experience, 
or will additional examples 
beyond three be disregarded? 

See response to Question #184. 

52 4.11 Financial Information 
Page 17 

For privately held firms, will 
reviewed financial statements 
prepared by a CPA be acceptable 
if audited financials are not 
available? 

Please see Section 4.11 re 
privately owned entities or sole 
proprietorships, which includes 
the following language: “Last 
three years of audited or un-
audited accrual-basis financial 
statements, including an income 
statement, cash flow statement 
and balance sheet” 

53 4.9  Requirements 
Page 16 

For contracts valued at less than 
$1,000,000, will vendors still be 
required to provide proof of 
insurance at the higher 
thresholds outlined in 
Attachment C, or will minimum 
statutory coverage suffice? 

Vendors should anticipate being 
required, at the time of the Task 
Order, to provide proof of 
insurance in the amounts for 
Contracts Valued in Excess of 
$1,000,000.   

54 5.2.1 Development of 
Policies, Procedures, and 
SOPs 
Page 19 

Will DCR provide existing policies 
and templates to be updated, or 
should vendors plan to create all 
materials from scratch? 

This will vary by task order. 
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55 5.2.2 Financial Compliance, 
Oversight, and Fraud 
Prevention 
Page 19 

Can DCR clarify whether financial 
monitoring will include direct 
oversight of subrecipients’ 
accounting systems, or be limited 
to compliance reviews? 

DCR does not anticipate financial 
monitoring to include direct 
oversight of subrecipients’ 
accounting systems.  

56 5.2.3 Duplication of 
Benefits Compliance 
Page 20 

Will DCR provide access to 
federal and state data systems 
for DOB checks, or must vendors 
procure and integrate their own 
data sources? 

DCR will provide access to the 
data systems. 

57 5.2.4 Procurement 
Compliance and Monitoring 
Page 20 

Should vendors anticipate 
providing procurement training 
to subrecipients, or will DCR 
handle training and vendors 
focus solely on compliance 
monitoring? 

This will depend upon the task 
order and needs of subrecipients. 

58 5.2.5 Claims, Appeals, and 
Case Reviews 
Page 20 

Can DCR confirm whether 
vendors will have direct authority 
to make eligibility 
determinations, or will 
recommendations be reviewed 
and approved by DCR staff? 

DCR staff will review and 
approve. 

59 5.2.7 Needs Assessments, 
Market Analysis, and 
Geospatial Support 
Page 21 

Will DCR provide access to state 
GIS and data repositories, or 
must vendors rely on publicly 
available datasets? 

DCR can provide access to state 
data, but the vendor may also 
choose to use publicly available 
datasets. 

60 5.2.8 Program Performance 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
Page 21 

Can DCR clarify whether vendors 
are expected to design new 
performance metric systems or 
only provide staff to operate and 
maintain DCR-selected systems? 

Vendors will be expected to help 
develop and design performance 
metric systems and conduct 
program evaluation activities. 

61 5.2.8 Program Performance 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
Page 21 

Will vendors be granted access to 
the Disaster Recovery Grant 
Reporting (DRGR) system 
directly, or will all DRGR 
reporting be managed through 
DCR staff? 

DRGR reporting will be managed 
by DCR staff. 

62 5.2.8 Program Performance 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
Page 21 

Should proposed tools for 
milestone tracking and progress 
reporting be integrated with the 
future System of Record (SOR), or 
will standalone tools be 
acceptable? 

Standalone tools will be 
acceptable as long as they can at 
least interface with the SOR to 
avoid manual data entry.   

63 5.2.11 Technical and 
Engineering Support 
Page 22 

Can DCR clarify whether 
engineering services must be 
performed by licensed 
Professional Engineers (PEs) in 

Licensing in the state of North 
Carolina will not be required for 
most tasks, however PEs must be 
knowledgeable of local codes 
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North Carolina, or if equivalent 
licensed professionals from other 
states are acceptable? 

and requirements sufficient to 
provide a thorough review and 
feasibility analysis of projects.  

64 5.2.12 Training, Technical 
Assistance, and Capacity 
Building 
Page 22 

Should training materials be 
designed for statewide use and 
reuse, or should they be tailored 
to specific 
subrecipients/programs? 

Statewide use. 

65 5.2.14 Communication, 
Public Information, and 
Outreach Support 
Page 23 

Will DCR provide 
branding/graphic standards for 
public-facing materials, or should 
vendors propose their own? 

See response to Question #38. 

66 5.2.16 Technical Systems 
Specification & Project 
Management 
Page 23 

Can DCR clarify whether the 
vendor’s role is limited to 
documenting workflows and 
specifications, or will vendors 
also be expected to manage 
vendors providing SOR 
development services? 

Documenting workflows and 
specifications.  DCR will manage 
vendors providing SOR 
development services. 

67 5.2.16 Technical Systems 
Specification & Project 
Management 
Page 23 

Is there an anticipated timeline 
for finalizing the System of 
Record (SOR), and will Task 16 
vendors be engaged prior to or 
after system vendor selection? 

See response to Question #104. 

68 5.2.16 Technical Systems 
Specification & Project 
Management 
Page 23 

Will vendors under Task 16 be 
expected to provide ongoing 
project management support for 
system implementation (e.g., 
sprint planning, testing, user 
acceptance) or only provide 
initial specifications? 

Anticipated deliverables are 
workflow and technical 
specification documentation and 
project management and 
monitoring of SOR. 

69 5.2.16 Technical Systems 
Specification & Project 
Management 
Page 23 

Can DCR clarify if integration 
requirements with financial 
management and reporting 
systems are within scope for Task 
16 vendors? 

Yes, these could be within scope 
depending upon the task orders. 

70 5.2.17 Environmental 
Review 
Page 24 

Should vendors provide unit 
costs inclusive of all required 
studies (e.g., noise, floodplain, 
endangered species), or will 
these be contracted separately as 
needed? 

See response to Question #34. 

71 3.4 Evaluation Criteria 
Page 13 

Will DCR assign weighted scoring 
to the evaluation factors 
(experience, firm qualifications, 
methodology, cost), and if so, can 

Criteria are listed in order of 
importance; no specific weights 
will be assigned.   
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the weights be shared with 
vendors? 

72 2.6 RFP Submittal 
Page 8 

If a vendor experiences technical 
issues with the eProcurement 
portal on the submission 
deadline, is there an alternate 
method (e.g., email submission) 
permitted as backup? 

Pursuant to 01 NCAC 05B .0303, 
e-mail, facsimile, and telephone 
offers shall not be accepted in 
response to a Solicitation that is 
required to be sealed pursuant to 
Rule .0301.   Vendors should not 
wait until the submission 
deadline to begin submitting 
through the portal.  Submit well 
in advance with plenty of time to 
call the helpdesk for assistance. 
For training on how to use 
eProcurement Sourcing, 
https://eprocurement.nc.gov/tra
ining/vendor-training.  Questions 
or issues related to using 
eProcurement Sourcing must be 
directed to the eProcurement 
Help Desk at 888-211-7440, 
Option 2. Help Desk 
representatives are available 
Monday through Friday from 
7:30 AM ET to 5:00 PM ET 

73 2.7 Proposal Contents,  
Page 9 

Can the vendor include cover 
letter with the submittal? 

Yes 

74 18 Subcontracting,  
Page 46 

Is it permissible for a firm to be 
included as a subcontractor on 
another firm’s response in 
addition to submitting its own 
proposal as a prime respondent? 

Yes.  DCR will ensure there are 
no conflicts of interest when 
issuing task orders and making 
selections.   

75 18 Subcontracting,  
Page 46 

Are subcontractors required to 
complete the attachment forms 
as well, or is that only required of 
the prime respondent? 

The prime respondent is the 
responsible entity, so it is only 
required of the prime respondent 
for now.  Information from 
subcontractors, such as the 
lobbying certification, may be 
required upon contract.   

76 3.5 Performance Outside 
the United States,  
Page 14 

Should the completed form 
required, Attachment D, be 
included in the upload of the 
entire RFP document via the 
Ariba procurement portal or 

See response to Question #21.  
 
The entire offer, one (1) pdf file, 
should be uploaded in 
eProcurement Sourcing in 
Section 5.1 VENDOR OFFER.   

https://eprocurement.nc.gov/training/vendor-training
https://eprocurement.nc.gov/training/vendor-training
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separately as an appendix in the 
submittal? 

77 4.5 Hub Participation, 
Pages 15-16 

Should the completed form 
required, Attachment E, be 
included in the upload of the 
entire RFP document via the 
Ariba procurement portal or 
separately as an appendix in the 
submittal? 

See response to Question #21 
and #76.  

78 4.10 Lobbying Activity 
Certification for Federal 
Grants,  
Page 17 

Should the completed forms 
required, Attachments F & G, be 
included in the upload of the 
entire RFP document via the 
Ariba procurement portal or 
separately as an appendix in the 
submittal? 

See response to Question #21, 
#76, and #77.   

79 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

What would be the number of 
awards you intend to give 
(approximate number)? 

See response to Question #28. 

80 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

What are the estimated funds 
that are estimated to be 
allocated for this contract? 

Funds allocated to these 
activities depend upon task 
orders issued. 

81 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

What is the tentative start date 
of this engagement? 

That will vary by task order, but 
first tasks could start as early as 
October 2025 after evaluation 
committee reviews. 

82 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

What is the work location of the 
proposed candidates? 

See response to Question #4 and 
#25. 
 

83 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Is this a new contract or are there 
any incumbents? If there is an 
incumbent, could you please let 
us know the incumbent name 
and pricing and are the 
incumbents eligible to submit the 
proposal again? 

The Division of Community 
Revitalization (DCR) is a new 
division and new program. This is 
a new contract for DCR.  

84 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Are there any pain points or 
issues with the current 
vendor(s)? 

See response to Question #83.  

85 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Could you please share the 
previous spending on this 
contract, if any? 

See response to Question #83. 

86 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Is there any mandatory 
subcontracting requirement for 
this contract? If yes, Is there any 
specific goal for the 
subcontracting? 

There is no mandatory 
subcontracting requirement.  
Please see NC General T&Cs #18 
on page 46 regarding 
subcontracting.  
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87 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

How many positions were used in 
the previous contract 
(approximate)? 

See response to Question #83. 

88 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

How many positions will be 
required per year or throughout 
the contract term? 

This information is not known.  
Per RFP Section 5.1 GENERAL, 
“The specific level of Vendor 
support for each task order is not 
yet known and will depend on 
evolving program needs.” 

89 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

If the resources we provide at the 
time of proposal submission are 
not available at the time of a 
potential contract award could 
vendors replace them with 
equally qualified resources? 

Yes, subject to approval of 
proposed replacement personnel 
by the Division of Community 
Revitalization.  

90 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Can we provide hourly rate 
ranges in the price proposal? 

No, rate ranges per position are 
not acceptable.   

91 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Is it entirely onsite work or can it 
be done remotely to some extent 
/ Does the services need to be 
delivered onsite or is there a 
possibility for remote operations 
and performance? 

See response to Question #4 and 
#25. 
 
The specific Task Order will 
contain requirements, terms, and 
conditions particular to that 
project. 

92 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Are resumes required at the time 
of proposal submission? If yes, 
Do we need to submit the actual 
resumes for proposed candidates 
or can we submit the sample 
resumes? 

See response to Question #14, 
#18, #43, and #49. 

93 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Could you please provide the list 
of holidays? 

2025 State Holidays: 
September 1 (Labor Day) 
November 11 (Veterans Day) 
November 27-28 (Thanksgiving) 
December 24-26 (Christmas) 
 
2026 State Holidays: 
January 1 (New Year’s Day) 
January 19 (Martin Luther King 
Jr. Birthday) 
April 3 (Good Friday) 
May 25 (Memorial Day) 
July 3 (Independence Day) 
September 7 (Labor Day) 
November 11 (Veterans Day) 
November 26-27 (Thanksgiving) 
December 24, 25, 28 (Christmas) 
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94 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Are there any mandated Paid 
Time Off, Vacation, etc.? 

This is up to each vendor.     

95 5.0 Scope of Work 
Page 18 

If a vendor is selected for 
inclusion on the STC, will they be 
required to submit proposals for 
all subsequent Task Orders within 
their designated task areas, or 
will vendors have the discretion 
to determine which Task Orders 
they wish to pursue? 

Vendors will not be required to 
respond to subsequent Task 
Orders.  

96 General Clarification 
(Applicable Across 
Categories) 
Section 5.0, Scope of Work 
Page 18 
Section 4.0, Requirements 
Page 14 

For software-driven deliverables, 
are there preferred platforms or 
technical standards (e.g., 
security, integration) DCR 
requires for training, reporting, 
or grant management tools? 

DCR does not have any preferred 
platforms. DCR is in the 
procurement process for a grant 
management system that could 
have potential requirements, but 
they are not yet known. 
Technical standards will depend 
on the deliverable and must 
conform to NCDIT’s relevant 
standards.   

97 General Clarification 
Section 5.2.12, Task 12: 
Training, Technical 
Assistance, and Capacity 
Building 
Page 22 

What is the anticipated volume 
or scale of training sessions (in-
person/virtual) per year? Is there 
a preferred mode (on-site vs 
remote) for delivery? 

There could be multiple training 
sessions per year, depending on 
training needs. The mode of 
delivery will vary depending on 
the type of training.  

98 General Clarification 
Section 5.2.12, Task 12: 
Training, Technical 
Assistance, and Capacity 
Building 
Page 22 

Will DCR provide existing training 
materials or resources for the 
vendor to build upon, or is the 
successful proposer expected to 
develop content from scratch? 

Training materials will be 
developed in collaboration with 
DCR. The exact training needs are 
not yet known.  

99 Task 12: Training, Technical 
Assistance, and Capacity 
Building 
Section 5.2.12 
Page 22 

Can you clarify what regulatory 
areas (e.g., CDBG-DR specifics, 
HUD rules, state procurement) 
you anticipate requiring ongoing 
training for? 

The exact training needs are not 
yet known, but training will likely 
be needed to ensure compliance 
with CDBG-DR, HUD, federal, 
state, and local requirements.  

100 Task 12: Training, Technical 
Assistance, and Capacity 
Building 
Section 5.2.12 
Page 22 

Is there a required certification 
for trainers or specific credentials 
preferred in training staff? 

No specific certifications are 
required, but trainers should 
have expertise in the training 
that is being provided.  

101 Task 12: Training, Technical 
Assistance, and Capacity 
Building 
Section 5.2.12 
Page 22 

Will the successful proposer be 
supporting only DCR staff, or will 
task orders extend to 
subrecipients and external 
partners? What is the expected 

Per the RFP in task 12, training 
sessions are for DCR staff, 
subrecipients, and partners. The 
expected size of these events is 
not yet known.  
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attendee profile/size for 
technical assistance events? 

102 Task 12: Training, Technical 
Assistance, and Capacity 
Building 
Section 5.2.12 
Page 22 

What systems or formats do DCR 
prefer for application intake 
support? For example, web 
portals, paper-based, or hybrid? 

This is not yet determined due to 
a system not yet being procured. 
An interim process is being 
developed.  

103 Task 12: Training, Technical 
Assistance, and Capacity 
Building 
Section 5.2.12 
Page 22 

Does DCR intend to incorporate 
any Learning Management 
System (LMS) or digital training 
platform as part of this work, or 
should the vendor propose one? 

Currently, DCR does not plan to 
incorporate a digital training 
platform.  

 

104 Task 15: Grant 
Management 
Section 5.2.15 
Page 24 

Can you specify which grant 
management systems (if any) are 
currently used by DCR, or should 
vendors recommend/provide 
their own? 

The Division of Community 
Revitalization (DCR) issued a 
competitive procurement for a 
grant management system; 
offers are under evaluation.  

105 Task 15: Grant 
Management 
Section 5.2.15 
Page 24 

Is grant management support 
expected to include direct 
interaction with subrecipients 
regarding compliance or just 
tools/workflows? 

Grants management support 
could include direct interaction 
with subrecipients depending on 
the task.  

106 Task 15: Grant 
Management 
Section 5.2.15 
Page 24 

Does DCR seek tools that 
integrate with HUD reporting 
systems (e.g., DRGR) or should 
vendor workflows remain 
standalone? 

Integration with DRGR is not 
allowed. Data can be uploaded to 
the system using templates 
provided by HUD.  

107 Task 14: Communication, 
Public Information, and 
Outreach Support 
Section 5.2.14 
Page 23 

Are there existing branding, 
accessibility, or language 
translation standards vendors 
must adhere to for outreach 
materials? 

See response to Question #38. 

108 Task 14: Communication, 
Public Information, and 
Outreach Support 
Section 5.2.14 
Page 23 

What digital platforms are 
currently leveraged for public 
communication (e.g., website, 
email, social media), and is the 
vendor intended to manage any 
of these directly? 

DCR uses email, listservs, 
website, social media, and may 
implement additional platforms 
as needed. The vendor is not 
intended to manage any of these 
directly. 

109 Task 14: Communication, 
Public Information, and 
Outreach Support 
Section 5.2.14 
Page 23 

For crisis communication 
protocols, will the vendor act as 
spokesperson or advisory support 
only? 

Advisory support only. 

110 Task 14: Communication, 
Public Information, and 
Outreach Support 

Are rural/low-connectivity 
communities a focus for outreach 
delivery and, if so, what 
accommodations are preferred? 

Yes; accommodations depend on 
community need but may include 
in-person meetings, printed 
materials, or working with local 
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Section 5.2.14 
Page 23 

partners, stakeholders, and other 
groups directly in the 
community. 

111 Task 8: Program 
Performance Monitoring & 
Evaluation 
Section 5.2.8 
Page 21 

Does DCR have an existing DRGR 
or program performance 
dashboard, or is the vendor 
expected to implement and 
operate such a system? 

DCR is a new division and does 
not have a program performance 
dashboard.   

112 Task 8: Program 
Performance Monitoring & 
Evaluation 
Section 5.2.8 
Page 21 

What KPIs or compliance metrics 
are used in current monitoring, 
and will samples/templates be 
provided to the selected vendor? 

DCR has not yet developed KPIs. 

113 Task 8: Program 
Performance Monitoring & 
Evaluation 
Section 5.2.8 
Page 21 

Are site visits, interviews, or 
fieldwork expected as part of 
evaluation deliverables, or will 
work be limited to reporting and 
data analysis? 

Task 8 will mainly be limited to 
reporting and data analysis and 
could require interviews. 
Monitoring is under Task 10.   

114 Additional Strategic 
Questions 
Section 5.2, Tasks / 
Deliverables 
Multiple pages (19–24) 

Is there a preferred form and 
structure for reporting 
deliverables (e.g., templates, 
digital uploads)? 

No. 

115 Additional Strategic 
Questions 
Section 5.4, Transition 
Assistance 
Page 24 

How will transition assistance 
during closeout (Section 5.4) be 
handled for technical/software 
deliverables? 

Please see clarification for T&C 
2(b) at the top of this Addendum.  

116 5.1 Scope of Work - 
General 
Page 21 
 

The Scope of work indicates “DCR 
will utilize a System of Record 
(SOR) for CDBG-DR grant 
activities” 
 
Has this system of record been 
finalized, if so. Please indicate. 

See response to Question #104.  

117 5.2.8 - TASK 8 – Program 
Performance Monitoring 
and Evaluation 
Page 21 

The RFP notes the vendor will 
assist with “performance metric 
tracking systems.”  
 
Does DCR have a preferred 
project or task management 
software currently in use? 

No. 

118 5.2.14 - TASK 14 – 
Communication, Public 
Information, and Outreach 
Support 
Page 23 

The RFP notes the vendor will 
assist with “language 
translation.”  
 

Materials may be provided 
through both oral interpretation 
and written translation services 
to people at no cost and these 
services are available upon 
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Does DCR have a known list of 
target languages for translation? 

request. Meaningful and equal 
access to federally funded 
programs and activities is 
required by Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964. 

119 3.4 Evaluation Criteria  
Page 13  

Under Evaluation Criteria 1. 
Experience, the State lists “Years 
of experience in the business”. Is 
this the total years of the firm 
has been in business or total 
years of experience managing 
federal/HUD funds?  

Please include both in your 
proposal; HUD and disaster 
recovery experience is the most 
relevant. 

120 2.7 Proposal Contents  
Page 9  

The RFP requires the disclosure 
of the respondent’s finance 
information, but the Proposal 
Contents Section does not list an 
area to provide that disclosure. Is 
it OK that the respondent’s 
financial information is provided 
after 6. Examples?  

Yes.   

121 2.7 Proposal Contents  
Page 9 and 10  

May respondents provide a cover 
letter? 

See response to Question #73.  

122 Attachment E: Historically 
Underutilized Businesses 
Information  
Page 55  

If we are utilizing a subcontractor 
that is a Historically Underutilized 
Business, may we indicate “Yes” 
to the questions on the form? 
What other information in the 
response will the state require to 
identify subcontractors?  

Attachment E: Historically 
Underutilized Business 
Information regards the Vendor 
submitting the offer (prime 
contractor).  The Vendor may 
indicate in their offer names of 
subcontractors and the 
subcontractor(s) HUB status. 

123 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Pages 9 and 10 

Section 2.7 states that “All pages 
of the RFP should be returned,” 
but Item #2 asks only for “Signed 
Execution Pages and signed 
Addenda.” Where should bidders 
attach all pages of the RFP? In 
the section corresponding to 
Item #2, or as an attachment to 
the proposal? 

The entire offer, one (1) pdf file, 
should be uploaded in 
eProcurement Sourcing in 
Section 5.1 VENDOR OFFER.  The 
entire offer includes information 
in RFP Section 2.7 PROPOSAL 
CONTENTS, and all information 
required by the RFP.  The State 
will not disqualify a Vendor for 
where in the offer the Vendor 
elects to place all pages of the 
RFP.   

124 4.9 Insurance 
Requirements 
Page 16 

This section states that “Vendor 
shall submit acceptable evidence 
of insurance with each task 
order.” Please confirm that proof 
of insurance should be submitted 

See response to Question #37.  
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only with task orders, not with 
this response. 

125 Ariba Sourcing Event, 
Section 5.1 

Please confirm that the upload 
required in this section should 
include a complete, signed, and 
initialed copy of the Solicitation 
Document, and our unredacted 
offer, in a single PDF file. (If not, 
please clarify the intended 
content to upload.) 

eProcurement Sourcing, Section 
5.1 VENDOR OFFER, is where to 
upload the complete and signed 
UNREDACTED offer. The entire 
offer should be one (1) pdf file. 
 
eProcurement Sourcing, Section 
5.3 VENDOR OFFER (REDACTED), 
is where to upload the 
REDACTED offer. 

126 Ariba Sourcing Event, 
Section 5.2 

This section requests that bidders 
upload a completed Attachment 
A, Pricing, in Excel format. 
However, Attachment A is 
provided only in PDF format, not 
in Excel. Is there an Excel version 
of Attachment A that DCR will 
provide? Or are bidders expected 
to replicate the entire content of 
Attachment A in Excel before 
completing it and uploading it? 
Or is Excel only for the pricing 
table, and the rest of Attachment 
A should be completed in PDF 
format? If the latter, are bidders 
able to upload more than one file 
in Section 5.2? 

eProcurement Sourcing, Section 
5.2 ATTACHMENT A: PRICING is 
where to upload pricing in Excel 
format. Do not password protect 
the Excel Price file.  
 
There is not an Attachment A: 
Pricing (in Excel) for Vendors to 
download.  Vendors should 
replicate in Excel the format 
shown in Attachment A for 
pricing submittal. 
 
Attachment A (RFP page 26) 
TASK ORDER CATEGORIES the 
vendor should return in pdf 
format. The TASK ORDER 
CATEGORIES selected by the 
Vendor should be included in the 
entire Vendor offer uploaded in 
Section 5.1 VENDOR OFFER 
(unredacted).     

127 5.2.1 Task 1 – Development 
of Policies, Procedures, and 
SOPs  
Page 19 

Will this staff augmentation also 
support the Workforce Housing 
for Homeownership (WHO) 
Program? 

Yes, it could potentially support 
the Workforce Housing for 
Homeownership (WHO) Program, 
depending on the requirements 
of individual task orders. 
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128 2.3 Notice to Vendors 
Regarding RFP Terms and 
Conditions  
Page 7 

Is there a preferred format for 
submitting exceptions or redlines 
in the “Errata and Exceptions” 
section, i.e., does the State prefer 
redlines or a statement 
describing the changes vendor 
would seek to negotiate upon 
award? 

The State prefers a statement 
describing the changes vendor 
would seek to negotiate.  The 
State is not required to consider 
any proposed modifications and 
may choose not to negotiate 
T&Cs.  

129 3.4 Evaluation Criteria  
Page 13 

Please confirm the presence of 
exceptions or redlines to the RFP 
Terms and Conditions will not 
impact proposal scoring under 
the Firm Qualifications or 
Methodology criteria. 

Exceptions or redlines to the 
T&Cs will not impact scoring; 
however, the State is not 
required to consider any 
proposed modifications and may 
choose not to negotiate T&Cs.   

130 Attachment C, Section 2(b), 
Default and Termination 
Page 38 

Can the State please define the 
term “CONTRACTOR” as used in 
this section? Will the State 
consider adding this term to its 
definitions under RFP Section 
2.8? 

A contractor is a business or 
entity that agrees to perform 
work under terms of a contract. 
DCR will add this term to its 
definitions under RFP Section 
2.8.  

131 Attachment C, Section 2(b), 
Default and Termination 
Page 38 

Please confirm that section 2(b) 
within Attachment C does not 
apply to the staff augmentation 
vendor.  

See replacement language at the 
beginning of this Addendum.  

132 Attachment C, Section 2(b), 
Default and Termination 
Page 38 

Please confirm that delays 
beyond vendor’s control (e.g., 
force majeure, state or grantee 
actions, and delays by the State 
other third parties, etc.,) will not 
trigger liquidated damages. 

See clarification at the top of this 
Addendum regarding 2(b).   

133 Attachment B, Section VI, 
Bid Submission, 23. Valid 
Taxpayer Information  
Page 35 

Can the State please provide a 
working link to the Substitute W-
9 and Instructions? 

https://www.osbm.nc.gov/direct
ed-grants-w-9-form/open. For 
General Instructions, please refer 
to the IRS Form W-9 located on 
the IRS Website 
(https://www.irs.gov/) 

134 Section 4.3, Payment 
Structure  
Page 15 

The RFP states “Payment will be a 
fixed fee for services based on 
the scope of work for each task 
order,” however the state is only 
requesting not to exceed labor 
rates (other than for the 
environmental unit tasks). Please 
confirm offerors will be able to 
invoice the state based on the 

See clarification at the top of this 
addendum:  Payment will be a 
NOT-TO-EXCEED amount for 
services based on the scope of 
work for each task order.   

 

https://www.osbm.nc.gov/directed-grants-w-9-form/open.
https://www.osbm.nc.gov/directed-grants-w-9-form/open.
https://www.irs.gov/
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not-to-exceed labor rates for the 
time and materials portion. 

135 Section 2.1, Request for 
Proposal and Task Orders 
Page 7 

Can the state provide a sample 
task order for review? 

We do not have a sample task 
order for review at this time.  

136 Section 5.2.17, Task 17 – 
Environmental Review  
Page 24 
 

Is there currently a statewide 
Section 106 Programmatic 
Agreement which the state 
utilizes to expedite Section 106 
compliance? 

No. A statewide PA does not yet 
exist.  

137 Section 5.2.17, Task 17 – 
Environmental Review  
Page 24 

Given the wide range of 
complexities and variables of a 
potential Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS), would it be 
acceptable to omit a cost 
estimate for EISs?  And instead, 
provide an estimate when more 
details are known? 

A cost estimate should be 
provided for all levels of review, 
however vendors may note 
assumptions utilized to 
determine their cost estimates.  

138 2.7 Proposal Contents,  
5. Resumes and Bios 
Page 10 

Can DOC clarify what staff should 
be considered key personnel? 

Key personnel are task-specific.   

139 2.7 Proposal Contents,  
5. Resumes and Bios 
Page 10 

By encouraging vendors to 
submit at least two qualified 
candidates per position or labor 
category, is this also requesting 
resumes/bios for every potential 
candidate? Should there be 
multiple named candidates 
proposed for every LCAT, or for 
support/lower level LCATs can 
the vendor simply provide a 
summary of the qualifications 
that will be met by the individual 
slated to support in this role? 

See response to Question #14, 
#18, #43, and #49. 
 

140 3.4 Evaluation Criteria 
Page 13-14 

Is DOC able to elaborate further 
on the criteria/scoring that goes 
into the narrative evaluation, 
specifically if any points or weight 
is assigned to the multiple factors 
taken into consideration of the 
best-value evaluation? 

 See response to Question #71. 

141 Attachment C, 2. DEFAULT 
AND TERMINATION, b) 
Liquidated damages… 
Page 38-39 

Can DOC clarify if this clause is 
relevant since the task orders and 
descriptions do not imply that 
any single-family reconstruction 
projects will be done under this 
contract? 

See replacement language at the 
top of this Addendum.   
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142 Attachment B, VI. BID 
SUBMISSION, 22. INELIGIBLE 
VENDORS  
Page 35 

Given there are possible 
monitoring and oversight 
responsibilities under this 
contract, can DOC clarify if the 
vendor selected to provide 
services for DOC/DCR for the 
Single-Family Homeowner 
Recovery program is precluded 
from pursuing this contract? 

Horne, in its capacity as the 
Single-Family Housing Recovery 
vendor, is precluded from 
participating in any monitoring-
related task orders for the Single-
Family Housing program, as well 
as any other task orders that 
would present a conflict of 
interest. 

143 Attachment B, VI. BID 
SUBMISSION, 22. INELIGIBLE 
VENDORS  
Page 35 

Given there are possible 
monitoring and oversight 
responsibilities under this 
contract, can DOC clarify if any 
subcontractor providing services 
under the prime for the Single-
Family Homeowner Recovery 
program is precluded from 
pursuing this contract? 

Vendors or subcontractors may 
not monitor or provide oversight 
for work they have performed 
themselves. However, they may 
be included in the pre-qualified 
vendor pool to support 
monitoring or oversight for other 
programs or task orders where no 
conflict of interest exists. 

144 3.5 Performance outside 
the US  
Page 14 

Does DCR specifically prefer firms 
that would provide the “option” 
to offshore some of the awarded 
work, or is this merely the 
disclosure of where each firm 
employee resides? 

No, DCR does not specifically 
prefer firms that offshore work. 
The request is solely for 
disclosure of where each firm’s 
employees reside. 

145 4.3 Payment Structure  
Page 15 

Please clarify the “fixed fee for 
services based on the scope of 
work for each task order” 
statement.   It is our 
understanding that this RFP is the 
vehicle for interested firms to get 
into a pre-approved pool of 
vendors for future work 
considerations.   Please confirm 
that this fixed fee seems to be 
referencing future opportunities 
for firms that achieve pre 
approval status, to submit “fixed 
fee” task order bids for future 
work RFP’s.   Our interpretation is 
that there will be no fixed fee 
submittals for this specific RFP, 
only a detailed hourly rate card 
for any Task Order Categories 
that our firm is interested in 

That is correct.  See clarification 
at the top of this Addendum. 
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responding, will be submitted, 
correct? 

146 4.8 Vendor’s 
Representations 
Page 16 

Please confirm whether the 
selected vendor will be classified 
as a contractor rather than a 
subrecipient? 

The selected vendor will be 
classified as a contractor. 

147 5.1 General (Scope of Work) 
Page 18 

Please confirm whether these 
tasks pertain to full-team 
capabilities rather than being 
specific to any one vendor? 

If this question is referring to 
partners and subcontractors, then 
the tasks pertain to full-team 
capabilities (including partners 
and subcontractors).   

148 5.1 General (Scope of Work) 
Page 18 

For tasks similar to previous DCR 
CDBG-DR RFPs, does DCR expect 
to engage vendors for expanded 
scopes of work not previously 
contemplated, or only in the 
event of identified limitations 
with selected vendor for those 
RFPs? 

DCR recognizes that either of 
these is possible – unanticipated 
work as well as limitations with 
another selected vendor.  DCR 
will distribute tasks among 
vendors depending on its need 
and the vendors’ qualifications 
and experience.  

149 5.2 Tasks/Deliverables 
Page 19 

Would selected vendor(s) for the 
below tasks assist work in 
conjunction or in the alternative 
potentially to vendor(s) selected 
to perform the Scope of Work 
envisioned in RFP# DPC-
646236801-MT? 
• Financial Compliance, 

Oversight, and Fraud 
Prevention. 

• Duplication of Benefits (DOB) 
Compliance. 

• Procurement Compliance and 
Monitoring. 

• Program Performance 
Monitoring and Evaluation. 

• Civil Rights, Fair Housing, 
Labor Standards, and Historic 
Preservation. 

• Audit Readiness and 
Monitoring Support. 

• Training, Technical Assistance, 
and Capacity Building. 

• Grant Management. 

DCR will distribute tasks among 
vendors on this contract and on  
State Term Contract 8411A 
depending on its need and the 
vendors’ qualifications and 
experience.  DCR intends to 
separate tasks, but some 
collaboration may be required.   

150 5.2.1 Task 1 – Development 
of Policies, Procedures, and 

Is the service of assisting in the 
“Development of Policies, 
Procedures, and Standard 

Anticipated for both Action Plan 
programs and general grants 
management. 
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Standard Operating 
Procedures (SOPs) 
Page 19 

Operating Procedures (SOPs)” 
envisioned as something that 
would be done for each Action 
Plan program or for more general 
CDBG-DR grant management 
needs? 

151 5.2.13 Task 13 – Relocation 
Program (URA/TRA) 
Development and 
Compliance Support 
Page 22-23 

Is the service of assisting with 
“Relocation Program 
Development and Compliance 
Support” envisioned as 
something that would be done as 
a separate program and contract 
from current contracts with 
vendors operating the Renew NC 
Reconstruction and 
Rehabilitation for Owner-
Occupied Units Program? 

The service of assisting with 
“Relocation Program 
Development and Compliance 
Support” is envisioned as 
something that would support 
URA compliance within housing, 
infrastructure, and/or economic 
revitalization programs, as 
required.  

152 5.2.14 Task 14 – 
Communication, Public 
Information, and Outreach 
Support 
Page 23 

Is the service of assisting with 
“Communication, Public 
Information, and Outreach 
Support” envisioned as 
something that would be done 
for each Action Plan program or 
specific ones? 

The service of assisting with 
“Communication, Public 
Information, and Outreach 
Support” is envisioned as being 
available for all Action Plan 
programs. Specific scope, level of 
effort, and deliverables will be 
defined at the task order level 
based on the needs of each 
program.  

153 5.2.16 Task16 – Technical 
Systems Specification & 
Project Management 
Page 23 

Is the service of assisting with 
“Technical Systems Specification 
& Project Management” 
envisioned as something that 
would be done as an overarching 
service across all Action Plan 
programs or specific ones? 

The service of assisting with 
“Technical Systems Specification 
& Project Management” is 
envisioned as an overarching 
service available across all Action 
Plan programs. Specific scope, 
level of effort, and deliverables 
will be defined at the task order 
level based on the needs of each 
program. 

154 5.2.5 Task 5 – Claims, 
Appeals, and Case Reviews 
Page 20 

Is the service of assisting with 
“Claims, Appeals, and Case 
Reviews” envisioned as 
something that would be done 
for each Action Plan program or 
specific ones? 

The service of assisting with 
“Claims, Appeals, and Case 
Reviews” is envisioned as being 
available for all Action Plan 
programs. Specific scope, level of 
effort, and deliverables will be 
defined at the task order level 
based on the needs of each 
program. 
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155 5.2.7 Task 7 – Needs 
Assessments, Market 
Analysis, and Geospatial 
Support 
Page 21 

Is the service of assisting with 
“Needs Assessments, Market 
Analysis, and Geospatial Support” 
envisioned as something that 
would be done for each Action 
Plan program or specific ones? 

The service of assisting with 
“Needs Assessments, Market 
Analysis, and Geospatial 
Support” is envisioned as being 
available for all Action Plan 
programs. Specific scope, level of 
effort, and deliverables will be 
defined at the task order level 
based on the needs of each 
program. 

156 5.0 Scope of Work 
Page 18 

Are the selected vendors of this 
RFP expected to support 
Hurricane Helene efforts and 
reporting to current Program 
Manager, Horne; or is this 
exclusively related to future 
events.  

The selected vendors of this RFP 
are expected to support DCR.  
Horne is providing 
implementation services to one 
of the five DCR programs 
outlined in the Action Plan. 

157 5.2.3 
Page 20 

Does DCR currently have access 
to benefits datasets required for 
the duplication of benefits 
calculation at beneficiary and 
property level? 

Yes. 

158 5.2.16 
Page 23 

What platform/products does 
DCR intend to use as the system 
of record? 

See response to Question #104. 

159 5.2.16 
Page 23 

Does DCR expect the system of 
record to integrate with financial 
or other agency/State-owned 
system. 

Yes. 

160 2.7 Proposal Contents/  
5. Resumes and Bios 
Page 10 

For the “two qualified candidates 
per position or labor category”, is 
this by overall service or by billing 
rate? 

See response to Question #14, 
#18, #43, and #49. 
 

161 5.2.17 TASK 17 – 
Environmental Review 
Page 24 

Do you anticipate any SEPA 
documentation under Task 17? 

Yes. NEPA compliance will 
require the state to follow any 
applicable SEPA requirements.  

162 5.2.17 TASK 17 – 
Environmental Review / 
Anticipated Deliverables 
Page 24 
–and— 
Attachment A – Pricing 
Page 28 

For Task 17 we are being asked to 
provide Unit Costs for 
Environmental Reviews (ER) on 
the basis of the required level of 
the review. However, different 
project reviews at the same level 
may have significantly different 
costs associated with them based 
on site-specific conditions 
requiring additional 
assessment/studies  (e.g. Phase I 

Vendors are welcome to provide 
any project assumptions along 
with their cost estimates 
however project costs must be 
sufficient to include any 
information necessary for a 
compliant NEPA review.  
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and/or Phase II ESAs, wetlands 
delineation, etc.) to produce a 
compliant ER. Costs for these 
additional assessments may 
exceed the typical unit cost by a 
factor of 10 or more. How do we 
account for these potential 
differences in costs for the 
purpose of submitting unit costs? 

163 5.2 TASKS / DELIVERABLES  
Task 9 (section 5.2.9) 
Page 21 

The section requests technical 
assistance "including but not 
limited to civil rights, fair 
housing, labor standards, and 
historic preservation." 
 
It appears as if the intention of 
the RFP is for firms to propose on 
a full task; however, there are 
firms that specialize in historic 
preservation and Section 106 
consultation without any 
expertise in items like fair 
housing and labor standards. 
 
Would it be permissible for a firm 
to propose on a subset of 
services within a 
Task?  Specifically for Task 9, can 
a firm provide qualifications for 
work involving Section 106 
consultation and other historic 
resources services but not the 
other scope items within Task 9? 

The vendor or its team should be 
able to respond to all tasks and 
deliverables within task 9.  DCR 
may or may not issue task orders 
for all of these activities.  

164 4.11 FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION 
Page 17 

Can submit financial statements 
directly instead of including in 
the response, o avoid any 
unintentional disclosure given 
the highly confidential nature of 
the information? 

No, all documents that are part 
of the proposal should be 
submitted in one pdf file in the 
sourcing tool, as described in the 
RFP.  A redacted version should 
be submitted separately.  

165 5.1 General 
Page 18 

Does the State have an estimate 
of how many staff will be 
activated for this contract? 

See response to Question #88.  
This information is not known.  
Per RFP Section 5.1 GENERAL, 
“The specific level of Vendor 
support for each task order is not 
yet known and will depend on 
evolving program needs.” 
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166 5.1 General 
Page 18 

How many staff has the State 
hired on previous staff 
augmentation contracts for 
CDBG-DR program? 

See response to Question #83. 
The Division of Community 
Revitalization (DCR) is a new 
division and new program. This is 
a new contract for DCR.   
The number of staff hired via 
staff augmentation contracts by 
agencies other than the 
Department of Commerce, 
Division of Community 
Revitalization, the information 
would need to be obtained from 
that respective agency.   

167 3.1 Method of Award 
Page 11-12 

Does the State have an estimate 
of how many vendors will be 
awarded per Task? 

See response to Question #28. 

168 2.7 Proposal Contents, Item 
5. Resumes and Bios 
Page 10 

Does the State intend for vendors 
to provide 2 resumes per position 
listed in the cost form, 2 resumes 
per Task, or other? 

Two resumes for each position 
listed in the cost form. 

169 2.1 Request for Proposals 
and Task Orders 
Page 7 

How will task orders be issued 
among the pre-qualified pool of 
vendors?  Competition, Low 
Price,  DCR's discretion, other? 

See responses to Question #28 
and #31. 

170 5.1 General 
Page 18 

Should the hourly rate provided 
for a task consider the position as 
remote or on location position? 

See response to Question #32. 

171 5.2.3 - Task 3- Duplication 
of benefits (DOB) 
Compliance 
Page 20 

Will the staff augmentation 
vendor complete all DOB 
verifications for Horne LLP, or 
only assist in case of the lack of 
capacity? 

The staff augmentation vendor 
may assist the Single Family 
Housing program only in case of 
lack of capacity, though it will 
assist with DOB for other state-
run CDBG-DR programs. 

172 5.2.5 & 5.2.10 
Page 20 & 22 

With the exception of the 
Appeals responsibility, how do 
responsibilities between 5.2.5-
Task 5 on page 20 differ from 
5.2.10: Task 10 on page 22? 

Task 5 is for appeals, and Task 10 
is for monitoring of grants. 

173 5.1 General 
Page 18 

Once a selected-pool vendor is 
notified of being actived, how 
much lead time is expected 
between notification and 
implementation of 
responsibilities? 

Once a vendor is selected for a 
particular task order, the time to 
begin implementation will be 
fairly short.  It will depend upon 
the task. 

174 5.2.3-Task Order 3 
Duplication of Benefits 
(DOB) Compliance  

What data sources will be 
available to the contractor to 
analyze duplication of benefits? 

DCR has data-sharing 
agreements in place with SBA,  
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Page 20 NFIP, NC Emergency 
Management and FEMA 

175 2.7 Proposal Contents  
Page 10 

Will the state accept personnel 
experience in lieu of firm 
experience? 

The RFP requires personnel and 
firm experience. 

176 2.7 Proposal Contents  
Page 10 

Will the state consider the firm’s 
broader experience in disaster 
recovery? 

As stated in the RFP, vendor 
qualifications include experience 
with HUD-funded programs or 
other disaster recovery work. 

177 5.3 Task Order 
Methodology  
Page 24 

In Section 5.3, the State says, 
"DCR will issue task orders, as the 
need arises, to at least two 
vendors qualified in that 
category." Does the state intend 
to issue a task order to all 
qualified vendors for a specific 
task or a selected few? 

See response to Question #30. 

178 5.0 Scope of Work  
Page 18 

The RFP states that some tasks 
may require vendors to report to 
an office provided by the State. 
Which tasks are projected to 
have this requirement? 

See response to Question #4, #25 

179 5.0 Scope of Work  
Page 18 

Can the State confirm if both 
biographies and resumes are 
required? 

Per the RFP, resumes or 
biographies must be provided for 
all key personnel proposed. 

180 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Please identify the current 
vendor(s) providing the services 
outlined in this RFP, and provide 
the corresponding contract 
number(s) and period of 
performance for each. 

See response to Question #9. 

181 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Will the State consider out-of-
state vendors for prime 
contractor roles if all work is 
performed during North Carolina 
business hours and personnel can 
travel on-site as needed? 

Yes. 

182 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Page 9 

Please confirm whether the State 
prefers the proposal to be 
submitted as a single 
consolidated PDF within the eVP 
system, or as separate files for 
the technical proposal, pricing, 
and attachments. 

See response to Question #21, 
#22, #76, #123, #125, and #126. 
 
Yes, the State prefers the 
proposal to be submitted as a 
single consolidated PDF in 
eProcurement Sourcing in 
Section 5.1 VENDOR OFFER. 
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Pricing should be submitted in 
Excel format in eProcurement 
Sourcing Section 5.2 
ATTACHMENT A: PRICING.  

183 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Page 9 

Kindly confirm whether specific 
formatting requirements ,e.g., 
font size, font type, margin 
settings, apply to the technical 
narrative, resumes, or 
attachments. 

There are no formatting 
requirements.  

184 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Page 9 

Please clarify whether any page 
limitations apply to the technical 
narrative, and whether required 
attachments (e.g., resumes, 
forms, references) are excluded 
from any applicable page count. 

There is not a page limitation; 
however, Vendors are requested 
to keep offers concise and not to 
include marketing material.  

185 2.7 Proposal Contents 
Page 9 

The RFP states that “All pages of 
the RFP should be returned.” 
Please clarify whether the agency 
requires vendors to return the 
entire RFP document (including 
all pages) as part of the proposal 
submission, or only the 
completed forms and required 
attachments. 

All pages of the RFP should be 
returned as part of the proposal 
submission.  The entire 
document would become part of 
the contract between the vendor 
and DCR if the vendor is 
awarded, so it should be signed 
and submitted in full.   

186 2.7 Proposal Contents  
5. Resumes and Bio 
Page 10 

At the prequalification stage, will 
the State accept sample resumes 
for labor categories, or must all 
the proposed personnel be 
confirmed and committed for 
potential task orders? 

See response to Question #14, 
#18, #43, and #49. 

187 2.7 Proposal Contents  
5. Resumes and Bio 
Page 10 

Could the agency please clarify 
which specific labor categories 
will be required under this 
contract and the expected 
experience and skill sets 
associated with each? 

These labor categories are task-
specific and will vary by task. 

188 2.7 Proposal Contents  
6. Examples 
Page 10 

Please confirm whether past 
performance from proposed 
subcontractors may be included 
in Attachment H 

See response to Question #19 

189 2.7 Proposal Contents  
6. Examples 
Page 10 

Are state ,local government or 
federal disaster recovery 
programs (non-HUD funded) 
considered acceptable relevant 
experience if they demonstrate 

As stated in the RFP, vendor 
qualifications include experience 
with HUD-funded programs or 
other disaster recovery work.  
Lack of such experience could be 
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comparable scope and 
complexity? 

evaluated as a weakness in the 
proposal.   

190 5.0 SCOPE OF WORK 
5.1 GENERAL 
Page 18 

Please clarify the expected ratio 
of on-site versus remote work for 
personnel under this contract. 

The determination of on-site 
versus remote work will be based 
on program needs.  DCR does not 
have an estimate at this time. 
 

191 5.1 General  
Page 18 

Can vendors add or remove task 
order categories after initial 
qualification, or must their 
selections remain fixed for the 
three-year contract term? 

Vendors can remove task order 
categories, but the agency may 
not allow addition of task order 
categories. 

192 4.7 Personnel  
Page 16 

What is the process and expected 
timeline for DCR approval of key 
personnel substitutions, and how 
will delays in approval affect 
active task orders? 

The expected process is that the 
vendor will notify the State in 
writing of any changes, and the 
State will attempt to respond in 
writing with a decision within 5 
business days. 

193 4.11 Financial Information  
Pages 17–18 

For privately held firms, will 
unaudited financial statements 
be acceptable if audited 
statements are unavailable, and 
what level of detail must be 
disclosed for contingent 
liabilities? 

See answer to Question #52.  
Vendor should provide sufficient 
detail for DCR to “determine: 
whether the Vendor has 
sufficient ability to perform the 
Contract; whether the Vendor is 
able to meet its short term 
obligations, debts, liabilities, 
payroll, and expenses; whether 
Vendor has provided complete, 
reliable and accurate financial 
information regarding its 
business operation; whether the 
Vendor is financially solvent; and 
whether Vendor has sufficient 
cash flow and/or available 
financing from a financial 
institution to perform the 
proposed contract for an 
extended period without 
receiving payment from the 
State.”  (per Section 4.11) 

194 2.6 RFP Submittal  
Page 9 

Since redacted copies of 
proposals are required, what 
criteria will DCR use to determine 
whether a vendor’s 
confidentiality designations are 

The State does not create 
“criteria” to make such 
determinations but follows the 
Public Records Act. Initially, the 
State may accept the Vendor’s 
redactions and assume they were 
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accepted or overruled under the 
Public Records Act? 

made on a good faith basis. The 
State generally gives Vendors 
notice and an opportunity to 
defend their redactions if the 
State receives a request to 
provide unredacted information. 
Vendors are reminded that all 
redacted versions of the contracts 
must be posted on DCR’s website.    

195 4.9 Insurance 
Requirements  
Page 16 

Will the insurance requirements 
outlined in Attachment C apply to 
the master agreement as a 
whole, or only to individual task 
orders valued in excess of 
$1,000,000? 

Vendors should anticipate being 
required, at the time of the Task 
Order, to provide proof of 
insurance in the amounts for 
Contracts Valued in Excess of 
$1,000,000.    

196 3.4 Evaluation Criteria  
Pages 13–14 

While the RFP lists evaluation 
criteria in order of importance, 
will DCR publish specific scoring 
percentages or weights 
associated with each factor? 

See response to Question #71.  

197 4.7 Personnel  
Page 16 

Are subcontractors allowed to be 
proposed at the pool 
qualification stage, or must they 
be identified and approved only 
when responding to specific task 
orders? 

Subcontractors should be 
proposed in the vendor’s 
response to this RFP for the 
qualification stage.   

198 5.4 Transition Assistance  
Page 24 

What specific activities are 
expected under “transition 
assistance”—for example, 
data/system turnover, staff 
training, or ongoing service 
delivery until a new vendor is 
operational? 

See response to Question #115.  

199 5.1 General  
Page 18 

Since the SOR has not yet been 
finalized, what level of 
responsibility will vendors bear in 
its implementation and 
maintenance (for example, 
configuration, user support, or 
system administration)? 

Vendors in this RFP shall not be 
responsible for the 
implementation or ongoing 
maintenance of the System of 
Record (SOR). 

200 5.2.17 Environmental 
Review  
Page 24 

Must vendors provide unit costs 
for all levels of environmental 
review and reevaluations, even if 
they intend to compete only for 
selected review levels? 

Vendors must provide costs for 
all areas in which costs are 
required to be provided.  
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201 No reference citation 
provided by the Vendor. 

Are firms that hold disaster 
recovery contracts that include 
CDBG-DR support services for 
Helene impacted municipalities 
precluded from bidding on this 
contract? 

No; however if a conflict of 
interest exists, the firm may be 
prohibited from working on 
specific task orders. 

202 2.7 
Page 10 

Section Language: 5. Resumes 
and Bios. This section states, 
“Vendors are encouraged to 
submit at least two qualified 
candidates per position or labor 
category, where applicable.” 
 
Question: Please confirm the two 
candidates per position is only 
applicable to key staff and not all 
staff listed to support the project. 

See response to Question #14, 
#18, #43, and #49. 

203 4.5 
Page 16 

Section Language: HUB 
Participation. States, “…Vendors 
that are minority owned or have 
a strategic plan to support the 
State’s Historically Underutilized 
Business program by meeting or 
exceeding the goal of 10% 
utilization of diverse firms as 1st 
or 2nd tier subcontractors. 
Vendor shall complete 
ATTACHMENT E: HUB 
SUPPLEMENTAL VENDOR 
INFORMATION” 
 
Question: This section states 
there is a HUB Certified goal of 
10% met by a prime or 
subcontract certified firm; 
however, Attachment E appears 
to only inquire the state of a 
prime vendors HUB status. Please 
confirm if non-HUB-certified 
firms who partner with HUB-
certified subcontractors will 
receive the same evaluation 
scoring. Or is the evaluation only 
applicable to prime firms. 

See response to Question #3 and 
#122. 

204 Offeror Checklist  
Page 60 

Section Language: Signed Offer. 
Submit the complete RFP, not 
just the signature page.  

Inserting the Vendor name in the 
top right corner of each RFP page 



 
Page 33 of 33                                                                Addendum 1_Staff Augmentation                                                 
Doc1677946894 
 
 

 

 
Question: Please confirm 
whether vendors should be 
placing their firm name at the top 
of each page of the RFP in this 
section. 

is encouraged, but is not 
required.  

205 2.7 Proposal Contents 
(page 9) and Section 4.2 
Pricing (page 15) 

The cost proposal is not listed 
under the components.  Please 
clarify where it should be 
included. 

See response to Question #126. 

206 4.11 Financial Information 
(Page 17) and 2.7 Proposal 
Contents 

This section requires submittal of 
financial information, but that is 
not listed in Section 2.7 Proposal 
Content.  Please clarify where it 
should be included. 

Financial information may be 
included anywhere in the 
proposal; most vendors typically 
include it towards the end or 
last.   

207 2.7 Proposal Contents 
(page 10) and 4.1 Task 
Order Categories (page 14) 

The instructions for Section 4 
“Narrative Response:  Vendor 
Qualifications and Approach” 
appear to focus on past project 
experience and qualifications and 
capacity of staff.  Please confirm 
that you are not looking for an 
actual technical approach 
response to each task in the 
scope of work?  

As stated in the RFP, “for each 
task order category that Vendor 
wishes to be considered Vendor 
proposal should demonstrate 
specific proof of experience and 
qualifications to carry out the 
respective task.” Based on the 
vendor’s experience, it will need 
to generally describe a staffing 
plan, how Vendor will ensure 
quality and timely services, and 
how Vendor will ramp up 
services across the task order 
categories.  Vendors should 
describe their experience in each 
specific category for which they 
wish to be prequalified.  Vendors 
can provide a more specific 
technical approach in response 
to individual task orders.   

 
    Execute Addendum: 
 
  VENDOR: ________________________________________________   
 
  AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: _________________________________    
 

NAME and TITLE (Print or Typed): __________________________________  
 
DATE:    ___________________________________________________________   

 


